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precludes O Corp. from deducting the $10,000 
penalty as a trade or business expense, but 
does not preclude it from deducting the $500 
which it expended to remedy the noncon-
formity. 

Example 4. P Corp. was the operator of a 
coal mine in which occurred a violation of a 
mandatory safety standard prescribed by the 
Federal Coal Mine Health and Safety Act of 
1969 (30 U.S.C. 801 et seq.). Pursuant to 30 
U.S.C. 819(a), a civil penalty of $10,000 was as-
sessed against P Corp., and P Corp. paid the 
penalty. Section 162(f) precludes P Corp. 
from deducting the $10,000 penalty. 

Example 5. Q Corp., a common carrier en-
gaged in interstate commerce by railroad, 
hauled a railroad car which was not equipped 
with efficient hand brakes, in violation of 45 
U.S.C. 11. Q Corp. was found to be liable for 
a penalty of $250 pursuant to 45 U.S.C. 13. Q 
Corp. paid that penalty. Section 162(f) pre-
cludes Q Corp. from deducting the $250 pen-
alty. 

Example 6. R Corp. owned and operated on 
the highways of State X a truck weighing in 
excess of the amount permitted under the 
law of State X. R Corp. was found to have 
violated the law and was assessed a fine of 
$85 which it paid to State X. Section 162(f) 
precludes R Corp. from deducting the 
amount so paid. 

Example 7. S Corp. was found to have vio-
lated a law of State Y which prohibited the 
emission into the air of particulate matter 
in excess of a limit set forth in a regulation 
promulgated under that law. The Environ-
mental Quality Hearing Board of State Y as-
sessed a fine of $500 against S Corp. The fine 
was payable to State Y, and S Corp. paid it. 
Section 162(f) precludes S Corp. from deduct-
ing the $500 fine. 

Example 8. T Corp. was found by a mag-
istrate of City Z to be operating in such city 
an apartment building which did not con-
form to a provision of the city housing code 
requiring operable fire escapes on apartment 
buildings of that type. Upon the basis of the 
magistrate’s finding, T Corp. was required to 
pay, and did pay, a fine of $200 to City Z. Sec-
tion 162(f) precludes T Corp. from deducting 
the $200 fine. 

[T.D. 7345, 40 FR 7437, Feb. 20, 1975; 40 FR 
8948, Mar. 4, 1975, as amended by T.D. 7366, 40 
FR 29290, July 11, 1975] 

§ 1.162–22 Treble damage payments 
under the antitrust laws. 

(a) In general. In the case of a tax-
payer who after December 31, 1969, ei-
ther is convicted in a criminal action 
of a violation of the Federal antitrust 
laws or enters a plea of guilty or nolo 
contendere to an indictment or informa-
tion charging such a violation, and 
whose conviction or plea does not 

occur in a new trial following an appeal 
of a conviction on or before such date, 
no deduction shall be allowed under 
section 162(a) for two-thirds of any 
amount paid or incurred after Decem-
ber 31, 1969, with respect to— 

(1) Any judgment for damages en-
tered against the taxpayer under sec-
tion 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. 15), 
as amended, on account of such viola-
tion or any related violation of the 
Federal antitrust laws, provided such 
related violation occurred prior to the 
date of the final judgment of such con-
viction, or 

(2) Settlement of any action brought 
under such section 4 on account of such 
violation or related violation. 

For the purposes of this section, where 
a civil judgment has been entered or a 
settlement made with respect to a vio-
lation of the antitrust laws and a 
criminal proceeding is based upon the 
same violation, the criminal pro-
ceeding need not have been brought 
prior to the civil judgment or settle-
ment. If, in his return for any taxable 
year, a taxpayer claims a deduction for 
an amount paid or incurred with re-
spect to a judgment or settlement de-
scribed in the first sentence of this 
paragraph and is subsequently con-
victed of a violation of the antitrust 
laws which makes a portion of such 
amount unallowable, then the taxpayer 
shall file an amended return for such 
taxable year on which the amount of 
the deduction is appropriately reduced. 
Attorney’s fees, court costs, and other 
amounts paid or incurred in connection 
with a controversy under such section 
4 which meet the requirements of sec-
tion 162 are deductible under that sec-
tion. For purposes of subparagraph (2) 
of this paragraph, the amount paid or 
incurred in settlement shall not in-
clude amounts attributable to the 
plaintiff’s costs of suit and attorney’s 
fees, to the extent that such costs or 
fees have actually been paid. 

(b) Conviction. For purposes of para-
graph (a) of this section, a taxpayer is 
convicted of a violation of the anti-
trust laws if a judgment of conviction 
(whether or not a final judgment) with 
respect to such violation has been en-
tered against him, provided a subse-
quent final judgment of acquittal has 
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not been entered or criminal prosecu-
tion with respect to such violation ter-
minated without a final judgment of 
conviction. During the pendency of an 
appeal or other action directly con-
testing a judgment of conviction, the 
taxpayer should file a protective claim 
for credit or refund to avoid being 
barred by the period of limitations on 
credit or refund under section 6511. 

(c) Related violation. For purposes of 
this section, a violation of the Federal 
antitrust laws is related to a subse-
quent violation if (1) with respect to 
the subsequent violation the United 
States obtains both a judgment in a 
criminal proceeding and an injunction 
against the taxpayer, and (2) the tax-
payer’s actions which constituted the 
prior violation would have contravened 
such injunction if such injunction were 
applicable at the time of the prior vio-
lation. 

(d) Settlement following a dismissal of 
an action or amendment of the complaint. 
For purposes of paragraph (a)(2) of this 
section, an amount may be considered 
as paid in settlement of an action even 
though the action is dismissed or oth-
erwise disposed of prior to such settle-
ment or the complaint is amended to 
eliminate the claim with respect to the 
violation or related violation. 

(e) Antitrust laws. The term ‘‘anti-
trust laws’’ as used in section 162(g) 
and this section shall include the Fed-
eral acts enumerated in paragraph (1) 
of section 1 of the Clayton Act (15 
U.S.C. 12), as amended. 

(f) Examples. The application of this 
section may be illustrated by the fol-
lowing examples: 

Example 1. In 1970, the United States insti-
tuted a criminal prosecution against X Co., 
Y Co., A, the president of X Co., and B, the 
president of Y Co., under section 1 of the 
Sherman Anti-Trust Act, 15 U.S.C. 1. In the 
indictment, the defendants were charged 
with conspiring to fix and maintain prices of 
electrical transformers from 1965 to 1970. All 
defendants entered pleas of nolo contendere 
to these charges. These pleas were accepted 
and judgments of conviction entered. In a 
companion civil suit, the United States ob-
tained an injunction prohibiting the defend-
ants from conspiring to fix and maintain 
prices in the electrical transformer market. 
Thereafter, Z Co. sued X Co. and Y Co. for 
$300,000 in treble damages under section 4 of 
the Clayton Act. Z Co.’s complaint alleged 
that the criminal conspiracy between X Co. 

and Y Co. forced Z Co. to pay excessive 
prices for electrical transformers. X Co. and 
Y Co. each paid Z Co. $85,000 in full settle-
ment of Z Co.’s action. Of each $85,000 paid, 
$10,000 was attributable to court costs and 
attorney’s fees actually paid by Z Co. Under 
section 162(g), X Co. and Y Co. are each pre-
cluded from deducting as a trade or business 
expense more than $35,000 of the $85,000 paid 
to Z Co. in settlement— 

$10,000+[($85,000¥$10,000)÷3] 

Example 2. Assume the same facts as in ex-
ample (1) except that Z Co.’s claim for treble 
damages was based on a conspiracy to fix 
and maintain prices in the sale of electrical 
transformers during 1963. Although the 
criminal prosecution of the defendants did 
not involve 1963 (a year barred by the appli-
cable criminal statute of limitations when 
the prosecution was instituted), Z Co.’s 
pleadings alleged that the civil statute of 
limitations had been tolled by the defend-
ants’ fraudulent concealment of their con-
spiracy. Since the United States has ob-
tained both a judgment in a criminal pro-
ceeding and an injunction against the de-
fendants in connection with their activities 
from 1965 to 1970, and the alleged actions of 
the defendants in 1963 would have con-
travened such injunction if it were applica-
ble in 1963, the alleged violation in 1963 is re-
lated to the violation from 1965 to 1970. Ac-
cordingly, the tax consequences to X Co. and 
Y Co. of the payments of $85,000 in settle-
ment of Z Co.’s claim against X Co. and Y 
Co. are the same as in example (1). 

Example 3. Assume the same facts as in ex-
ample (1) except that Z Co.’s claim for treble 
damages was based on a conspiracy to fix 
and maintain prices with respect to elec-
trical insulators for high-tension power 
poles. Since the civil action was not based on 
the same violation of the Federal antitrust 
laws as the criminal action, or on a related 
violation (a violation which would have con-
travened the injunction if it were applica-
ble), X Co. and Y Co. are not precluded by 
section 162(g) from deducting as a trade or 
business expense the entire $85,000 paid by 
each in settlement of the civil action. 

[T.D. 7217, 37 FR 23916, Nov. 10, 1972] 

§ 1.162–24 Travel expenses of state leg-
islators. 

(a) In general. For purposes of section 
162(a), in the case of any taxpayer who 
is a state legislator at any time during 
the taxable year and who makes an 
election under section 162(h) for the 
taxable year— 

(1) The taxpayer’s place of residence 
within the legislative district rep-
resented by the taxpayer is the tax-
payer’s home for that taxable year; 
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